
 

 

CITY OF TONKA BAY 
ITEM NO.  4B 

 
 MINUTES 
 TONKA BAY CITY COUNCIL 
 REGULAR MEETING 

November 24, 2009 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 The regular semi-monthly meeting of the Tonka Bay City Council was called to 
order at 7:00 p.m.   
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 Members present: Mayor LaBelle, Councilmembers Marceau, Tessness, and 
Folley. Councilmember De La Vega was absent.  Also present were City Administrator 
Loftus, City Attorney Penberthy, City Planner Gozola, and Public Works Superintendent 
Kluver. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 Marceau moved to approve the agenda as submitted.  Folley seconded the 
motion.  Ayes 4.  Motion carried. 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 Tessness moved to approve the consent agenda as presented approving the 
worksession and regular meeting minutes of November 10, 2009 and Accounts 
Payable.  Folley seconded the motion.  Ayes 4.  Motion carried. 
 
5. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
 A. Brent Brickman, 40 West Point Drive discussed his concerns about the 
dock fees and gave a history of the dock fees over the past several years.  He stated he 
would like some clarity about what market rate is.  He listed the rates other cities are 
charging for their boat slips.  He supported the idea of expanding the number of spaces 
available.  He also stated Jane Zambreno would like to have the rates kept the same. 
 
 B. Douglas Eckland, 25 West Point Drive stated he didn’t see the logic in 
paying 2/3 of the commercial marina rates.  He didn’t feel we were in competition with any 
of the marinas on the lake.   
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING 
 A. Davis – 325 Lakeview Avenue – Loftus reviewed the public hearing 
process for the benefit of those in the audience.  Ben Gozola, City Planner reviewed the 
conditional use permit request from Jonathon Davis for property he owns at 325 Lakeview 



City of Tonka Bay 
Regular City Council Meeting 
November 24, 2009  Page 2 of 7 
 
 

 

Avenue.  The issue is the area of concrete that forms a recreational off-premise facility 
and also provides off-site parking.  The applicant is seeking two after-the-fact conditional 
use permits.  The first one is for the off-site recreational facility, basically a basketball 
court, and the second is for the off-site parking area.  The City Engineer reviewed the 
hardcover and drainage concerns and found no additional site work is required.  Gozola 
reviewed the criteria for a CUP approval.  He noted the requests are consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan. He also reviewed conformance with the performance standards for 
each CUP request.    He noted the applicant owns the adjacent property to the west, and 
the use appears to be an accessory use.  If the property is sold to someone else, the 
CUP would have to be terminated.  He would also recommend the use be held to only the 
private use of Mr. Davis and his occasional guests.  Staff has not identified any drainage 
issues on the site, and there is reasonably improved access to the adjacent house.  
Gozola reported this use is unique as it has been in use for 27 months, and we haven’t 
had any complaints about the use.  There is no evidence that either use will lower 
property values or burden city services.  There is no lighting proposed on this site.  If the 
owner would want lighting installed in the future, an amended CUP would be required.  
He recommended approval of both requests.  Amy Bach of the Christine Cahill Law 
Firm, representing the applicant was present for any questions and had no additional 
comments.  LaBelle opened the hearing for public comments.  Tom and Mary Lauer, 
315 Lakeview Avenue stated he takes exception with the Planner’s recommendations.  
He stated he was concerned about the truckloads of fill brought on the site without a 
permit.  Mary Lauer provided pictures of the fill being brought to the site.  She stated there 
are impacts on the neighbors, and they have complained on numerous occasions.  She 
stated they have had their house for sale for two years.  Mr. Lauer discussed his 
concerns about the fact a permit was not pulled for this work.  He believed the use does 
impact the character of the neighborhood.  He stated the City Council needs to determine 
there is a need for this use, and they have been unable to sell their home because of the 
basketball court.  Mrs. Lauer was also concerned about people spending the night on 
their boats all weekend.  She stated there is wiring for lighting on the site already.  LaBelle 
closed the hearing to public comments.  Tessness stated he was in favor of the request.  
Folley asked if there is a double fee.  Loftus stated Metro West will charge an 
investigative fee for an after-the-fact permit, but a double fee cannot be charged.  In 
response to a question from Folley, Gozola explained the section of the ordinance which 
dealt with sport courts.  Marceau stated we have to deal with what is on the site now, and 
staff is recommending approval of the requests.  He stated it is unfortunate that neighbors 
don’t always get along.  LaBelle stated we are doing the best we can to remedy this 
situation.  He stated he was satisfied with the conditions placed on these requests.  Folley 
asked Gozola to comment on the fill brought in and its impact on the neighborhood and 
future construction.  Gozola stated he cannot comment on fill being brought in, but he 
noted the Engineer stated there were no additional requirements relating to drainage.  In 



City of Tonka Bay 
Regular City Council Meeting 
November 24, 2009  Page 3 of 7 
 
 

 

response to a question from Mrs. Lauer, Gozola discussed the need for the requests.  He 
noted both requests are allowed by conditional use permit, and the City has determined it 
can be there should conditions be met.   Tessness moved to adopt Resolution 09-19 
approving the conditional use permit requests for Jonathon Davis at 325 Lakeview 
Avenue for an off-site recreational facility and parking based on the following 
findings of fact: 
1. The proposals are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; 
2. No impacts to adjacent properties have been identified; 
3. The proposed basketball court/parking facility will not burden City 

services; 
4. The proposed basketball court can, with conditions, meet the performance 

standards for an off-premises recreational facility; 
5. The Engineering review of the site has determined that the hardcover and 

final grades resulting from the basketball court do not generate new 
stormwater impacts requiring additional management techniques. 

 
And subject to the following conditions: 
1. The basketball court/parking facility shall be removed upon sale of the 

subject property to any individual not owning a single-family dwelling on 
an adjacent lot (either directly abutting the lot or directly across the 
fronting right-of-way). 

2. Use of the facility shall be restricted to the residents of the principal use to 
which the property is tied and their occasional guests. 

3. Expansion or changes to either the off-site private recreational facility or 
the off-premises parking facility shall require a CUP amendment. 

 
Marceau seconded the motion.  Ayes – LaBelle, Marceau, Folley and Tessness.  
Motion carried. 
 B. Maciosek – 70 West Point Place – Ben Gozola, City Planner stated this 
request is for a series of variances for the property at 70 West Point Place.  It is an l-
shaped flag lot.  He stated they have reviewed this request in detail with the applicants.  
The applicants have verified there will be a hollow area beneath the house where fill will 
not be required.  He stated this is one of the most challenging applications he has 
reviewed for Tonka Bay.  He reviewed the request showing the location of manmade 
channels.  He noted the location of the proposed house.  He stated there are many 
challenges which include the fact that it is a flag lot, there are lake views on three sides, 
there is a need for a shared driveway, and West Point Place is a private street.  Gozola 



City of Tonka Bay 
Regular City Council Meeting 
November 24, 2009  Page 4 of 7 
 
 

 

reviewed the configuration of the other houses in the area as a guide to determine this 
request’s configuration.  He noted the location of building pad, setbacks, usable area, 
private drive, buffer, and wetland areas.  He noted following his review, he has 
determined the following variances are required:  1) a variance from the floodplain fill 
requirement; 2) a variance from the requirement that the access drive be above the 931.5 
elevation; 3) a variance from the requirement that all curb cuts be at least five feet from a 
side lot line; and 4) a variance from the required wetland buffer width.  Gozola noted this 
lot is guided for residential use under the Comprehensive Plan.  It meets floor area and 
hardcover requirements.  There has been a review by the City Engineer and extensive 
review by the Minnehaha Creek Watershed District.    He stated this is a very unique lot.  
He reviewed the lot’s conformance to variance criteria.  He stated there are not unique 
circumstances to meet the access request.  Unique circumstances are dictating that the 
setback variance is needed.  The home complies with all setback requirements, and the 
requested variance would not impact light and air to the adjacent property.  He noted 
future drainage would not impact adjacent properties.  He noted if the floodplain buffer 
variance is not approved, this lot would be unbuildable.  He reviewed the criteria to 
approve a floodplain buffer variance.  He recommended approval of the floodplain buffer 
and access setback variances but denial of the access elevation variance.  He reviewed 
the wetland buffer variance request.  He stated it was found to be a reasonable request 
as it will be providing better protection of existing wetlands.  He noted it will not alter the 
character of the area.  He noted the unique shape of the lot is a factor to be considered 
as an undue hardship when considering the request.  He reviewed the unique 
requirements for approving this variance request and the findings that they were all met.  
He recommended approval of the wetland buffer width variance.  He stated there are 
other issues in addition to the variance requests.  The City’s interest and responsibility for 
serving this property begins and ends at West Point Road.  There are water issues, 
sewer assessment issues, and concerns with how this property would hook up to city 
sewer.  He suggested adding another condition that the applicants provide the City 
documentation of his legal right to use private land for access and/or utility purposes 
before a building permit can be issued.  Rose Larson, Pulse Land Group, representing 
the applicants discussed the process they went through to get the required MCWD 
approval.  She noted all the driveways in this area do not meet code.  She stated they will 
increase the elevation for ingress and egress if required.  They are willing to drop the 
variance request tonight and construct retaining walls in order to get this request to move 
forward.  They have gone above and beyond requirements to improve the wetland areas. 
   LaBelle requested all comments be addressed to the City Council and not the 
applicants. LaBelle opened the hearing for public comments.  Mark Kelly, representing 
Jim Krenik stated his client objects to the granting of any variances if they result in a 
building permit for the size of building proposed.  He discussed the front and rear lot lines, 
the building line, and the need to establish undue hardship.  He stated the first problem is 



City of Tonka Bay 
Regular City Council Meeting 
November 24, 2009  Page 5 of 7 
 
 

 

the applicants have not been notified they require a variance from the rear lot line.  There 
is a reasonable use for this property.  The house can be shortened, and the building pad 
will be quite adequate.  He asked the Council to consider the driveway location and the 
reasonable use of the property when making their decision.  Ms. Larson stated she and 
the applicants met with staff to determine what lot issues exist, and they have designed 
the lot to meet code requirements.  They have gone above and beyond the call of duty.  
Mr. Kelly stated his client has no obligation to enter into a shared driveway agreement, 
and any other issues they might have with his client are not for discussion.  Jim Krenik, 
60 West Point Place stated the driveway is as it has been for the last thirty years.  He 
discussed what he believed is a reasonable request.  He didn’t believe this was a 
reasonable request.  He indicated he would welcome a single family home, and a twin 
home would not fit in the neighborhood.  Steve McCloskey, 50 West Point Place stated 
he disagreed with points raised by the City Planner.  He didn’t agree that a hardship 
exists.  LaBelle closed the hearing to public comments.  LaBelle stated there are a lot of 
implications to consider.  He believed more fact finding is needed, and the Council just 
received a letter from Krenik’s attorney this evening.  Marceau stated it seems there a lot 
of things that still need addressing, and more information from staff will be necessary.  
Tessness agreed stating he would like to go through all the new information thoroughly.    
Folley moved to continue the public hearing to the January 12, 2010 meeting.  
Marceau seconded the motion.  Ayes 4.  Motion carried. 
 C. Certification of Delinquent Utilities and General Service Fees – Loftus 
stated the City certifies to the County the unpaid utility bills.  A public hearing is required 
before these amounts can be certified to the County.  LaBelle opened the hearing to 
public comments.  Richard Bury, 70 Interlachen Lane stated the property has been on 
the market for two years without any offers.  He stated he has a hardship family renting 
the house, and they are behind in rent payments.  He discussed his concern about taxes 
and the real estate market.  Marceau moved to adopt Resolution 09-20 approving the 
certification of delinquent utilities and general service fees.  Tessness seconded 
the motion.  Ayes – LaBelle, Folley, Marceau, and Tessness.  Motion carried. 
 
7. OLD BUSINESS 
 A. 2010 Equipment CIP Purchases – Loftus stated the equipment CIP 
purchases were discussed at a recent worksession.  Administrative Assistant Link met 
with copier representatives, and it was felt the copier purchase could wait another year.  
Based on information provided by Greg Kluver, it has been recommended that a new 
dump truck and skid loader be purchased in 2010.  The final budget will be brought back 
to the December 8 meeting. 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS 
 A. 2010 Fee Schedule – LaBelle announced the first reading of this 



City of Tonka Bay 
Regular City Council Meeting 
November 24, 2009  Page 6 of 7 
 
 

 

ordinance.  Folley moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2009-2.  
Tessness seconded the motion.  Ayes 4.  Motion carried.   
  
9. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
None 

10. REPORTS 
 A. Loftus – Loftus reported she is resigning as City Administrator for the City 
of Tonka Bay and provided a written statement.  She has discussed a possible transition 
plan prior to her start date of April 1.  She stated the Excelsior Fire District Board has 
decided to keep the $23,000 mandatory contribution in the budget.  The Board will wait 
until this summer when they have a better number for the 2011 contribution.  The 2010 
budget will remain unchanged.  The EFD free movie will be Saturday, December 5. 
 B. Marceau – Finance, Marinas – no report 
 C. Tessness – Buildings, Building Inspection, Fire Lanes and Municipal 
Docks – no report 
 D. Folley - Animal Control, LMCC, Technology, and Southshore Senior/ 
Community Center – no report 
 E. De La Vega - EFD, Parks, Sanitation, and LMCD – absent 
 F. Attorney's Report – no report 
 G. LaBelle - Public Works and SLMPD – LaBelle thanked Loftus for all her 
hard work.  He stated there are issues for discussion involved with a transition plan.  He 
stated we have posted the opening on the LMC website, and the ad will be in the Star 
Tribune on Thursday.  Resumes will be submitted until December 16, and we are 
proposing to have Jessica tender her resignation effective March 31 which would give us 
her expertise on a limited basis.  He would like to make the final decision at the next 
meeting.  Loftus stated this would mirror what she had planned for her maternity leave – 
coming into the office for meetings, signing checks, and signing off on building permits.  
She would also be available by e-mail and phone.  LaBelle asked Loftus to provide the 
Council with the timeline and proposed hours.  Loftus stated if Council is willing to 
interview on December 22, the application deadline can remain December 16.  The 
recruitment for a new City Administrator is a minimum of two months.  Marceau discussed 
the possibility of changing the pay scale for this position and looking at how much the 
position has changed.  LaBelle wasn’t convinced that the position has changed.    
Councilmembers discussed the pay range.  The range was changed to $47,000 - 
$67,000.  The Council concurred that the December 22 meeting would not be cancelled 
this year. 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 There being no further business, it was moved by Marceau to adjourn the 
meeting at 9:15 p.m.  Folley seconded the motion.  Ayes 4.  Motion carried. 



City of Tonka Bay 
Regular City Council Meeting 
November 24, 2009  Page 7 of 7 
 
 

 

 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Clerk 


